mazars Al Kharashi & Co

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sharcholders of

Walrah Company for Indusiry and Developmont
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

Riyadh - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Ohplinion:

We bave audited the financial stmements of Waftrah tor Industry and Development Company A Saudi Foint Stock
Company (the "Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position us a1 December 31, 2021, and
the statement of comprehensive incomse, statensent of changes in couity and statement of cash Rows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, mcluding o summary of significant asccounting pelicies and
other explanatory information

In vur opinion, the sccompanying financial stalements present fairly, in all muterial respects, the financial
posizion of the Company os a1 December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash Nows for the veir
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabin and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Certified Public
Accountants (SOCPA),

Busis for Opinion:

W conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {15As) endorsed in (e Kingdum
of Saudi Arabla. Our responsibilitics under these standarde are further deseribed n the “Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independens of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Also
fulfilled the requiremacnts of the conduct of other ethics in accordance with sise rules. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obmined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinisn,

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:

We draw attention fo note (2-¢) 1o the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a loss of
approximately SAR 10,930,587 for the year ended December 31, 2021, Additionally, the Company's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by SAR 20,385, 187 ns at December 31, 2021, These circuntstances indicate
the existence of a material uncertinty, that may cast significant doubt an the Company’s ability to continue as
1 going concern and our upinion has not been modified in this respect,

{dher Matter:

The Company's fnancial slatements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by another auditor,
who expressed a modified epmion an March 29, 2021, The basis of qualificd opinion is that the predecessor
auditor was not oble to reach o sufficient conclusion on the bases and assumptions wied in the valumtion of
properiy, plant and equipment as on December 31, 2020, whose book value mmounted o SAR 95,540,216, As a
tesull, the predecessor suditor was unable to determine whether it was necessary 1o make any sdjustments related
to the balance of property, plant and equipment in the stitement of financial position and items tnthe sitements
of comprebensive income, changes in equity and cash fows.

During the audit process of Company's financinl statements for the vear ended December 31, 2021, property,
plant and equipment were evalunted by an extemnal valuer, Acvordingly, there 15 no modified opinion on the
Company's financial statements s on December 31, 2021, in respect of the valuation of property, plint and
P,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ure those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current yvear. These matiers were nchdressed m the context of owr audit of the
linancial statements s a whole, and in forming our cyinion theroon, and we do nol provide a separate (7 TTOH
on these matters, For cach key audit matter, o description of how our audit addressed the matier is set out i

How the maiter was addressed In sur andit

Revenue recognition: We have performed the following procedures regarding
During the year ended Decomber 31, 2021, | revenue recognition:

Key amdit mufters

Company's revenuve amounted to SAR 64.9
million (2020: SAK &3,7 million),

The company continues 1o be under pressure
to meet goals and expectations which muy
lead te misstatements in revenue recognition,
Revenue recognition is 2 key sudit matier
Becaise there is @ risk that munagement may
overtide controls 1o misrepresent revenoe
transactioos,

Refer to Note 3-14 ol the financial statements
for the accounting policy related 1o revenue
recogmition and Note 23 for the related
disclosures,

Evaluating the appropnateness of the accounting
policies related to the revenue recopnition of the
Company by taking into considerstion the regquirements
of IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Clicnts",
Evaluating the design, implementation and testing of
the operational cffectiveness of the Company's comral
procedures, including the control peocedures 10 prevent
fransd when recognizing revenue in accordance with the
Conmpuny’s policy,

Performance of audit analytical procedures for
revenues, by companing sales for the current year with
the previous yomr, and identifving the causes of
limdamental  fuctuations, which require sdditional
examination in light of our understanding of the
company’s operating conditions, considering market
conditions as well.

Testing sales transactions, on a sample basis, and
perform cut-off tests of revenue to ensure that the
revenue has been recoginined in the comrect penod.
Assessing the adequacy of the diselosures that the
manngement has included in the accompanying
Timancial statements.
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Report on the Aundit of the Financial Statements {continued)
Key Audit Matters {continued)

Key nudit mafters

How ihe matter was gddressed n onr sodit

Trade receivables:

As on December 31, 2021, the carrying
value of trade receivables mmounted 1o
S5AR 283 million (2020: SAR 30 million),
and the provision fur expected credit Josses
of trade receivables amounted o SAR 9.5
million (2020: SAR 9.4 million).

Al each reporting dite, the Company's
fHiagement ag[-llu a simplified ¢x

eredif loas (“ECL"™)y model 1o determime the
alovance  for  imparrment  of  wade
receivables. The ECL model involves the
we of vanous  assumptions, mEcTo-
, cconomics Tactors and ssudy of historical
wends relating o the Company's
eapenence of irade receivables” collection,

Wi conmidered this a key sudit matier due
to the judgements and estimates involved
in the application of the cxpected credii
bss kel

Refier o Mobe 3-6 of the financial
statements for the secounting poliey
relating to trade receivables and Note | ]
for the related disclosures.

We have performed the following procedures segarding

expecled credit losses valuation of trade recelvables:

= Com the ECL model deveboped by management
o that required by IFRS 9 and reviewed the
reasonaibtleness of the methodology in comparisan w
accepted best practice. We also aceoumt the anithmetical
accurney of the model.

- Tested key assumptions such us those used to calcubnic
the likelihood of default and the subsequent loss an
default, by comparing 1o bestorical data, We also
considersd the incorperation of forward-locking factors
:u reflect the impact of future events on expecied credi
EET

- Selected o sample of trade receivables and semt
confirmation reguests W ensure the acvuracy of
balances al year-end. And related to customers from
whom no conlfrmations were received, we conducted
an alternative audit procedures that included verilying
the supporting documents and su ent collections

after year-end for the selected sample.

= We compared the Company's ECL provision policy
aad the BECL practice in  accordance whh the
requircments set oul in IFRS 9,

= Understand und evaluate the design and effectiveness

of the mternal controls that the Company applies to the
trade receivables cyobe.

= Assessing the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures
included in the sccompanying financial slatements.

'l.muumry:
As on December 31, 2021, the carrying
vilue of inventory amounted to SAR 15.2
million {2026: SAR 21.2 million).
Inventory 15 important becaunse of the
nature of the Company’s activity, which
depemsds on the stock mainly in generating
revenue and due to the nature of the siock
of perishable food items or the expiry of its
validity. Aceordingly. the inventary is one
of the key audit matters because of its
impact on the results of the business.
Reler to Wote 3-7 of ihe Mnanctal
statements Tor the secounting policy
reluted to inventory and Mote 12 for
reluted disclosures.

We have performed the following procedures regarding

villuation and accuracy of mventory;

- Test the design of the control procedures and their
operating effectiveness in respect of the recognition of
fmventory.

«  Detailed snalwtical procedures for inventory

= Test the cormectess of mventory measurernen! at the
lower of cost or net realizuble value as well as
reviewing the Company's policy to determine the cost
using werghied average method,

= Test the movement of inveniory in the subsequent
penod after year-end to ensure that it s not required 1o
recognie more provision for slow moving or damaged
inventory.

- W have attended the Company's annual stock coumt s
at December 31, 2021 to verify the sctual existence and
good status of a sample of ilems that are selected
rundomly,

Assessing the adequuey of the Company's disclosures
included in the accompanying financial sstements,

=
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Uther information included in the Company's snnual report for the year ended 31 December 2021

Management is responsible for the other information. The ather information consists of the information ineluded
in the annual report of the board of direciors, but does not include the finuncial statements and our repost thereon,
which ure expected 1o be made svailable to s after the date of our report.

Our upinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any kind
of assurance thereon,

Other informatin included in the Company's mnual regert for the yunr ended 31 Decemnber 2021 feontinued)
With regard 10 our review of the financial statements, our responstbility is limited to reading the other
wiformation deseribed sbove, and when reading it, we take into account whether the other information does not
materially cormespond to the financial statements or information obtained during the audit process or mtherwise
appears (o contain significan! misstolements

If. upon reading the board's report, we conclude that it contains material misstatements, we must inform Those
churged with governance of this matter,

Responsibilities of Munagement and those charged with Governance for the Financial Siatements

Managenwnt i responsible for the preparation and fuir presentation for the financial statements in accondance
with IFRSs, and for such intemal contrel as management determines is necessary tw enable the prepandion of
financial sutements thist are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the linancizl statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, masters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting anless mamgement sither intends to liquidate the Company or to cense operations, or has no
renli=ic aliemative bot w do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our vbjectives are to obiain reasonable assurance abow whether the finnncinl statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to froud or eror, and to jssue an suditor's repost that includes our Opinien.
Rensonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in scoordance
with 15A= will always detect & materinl misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud of ervor
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrepute, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these Anancial statements.

As pant of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audin. We also:

*  Idemily and assess the risks of material misstutement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emvor, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obwain audit evidence thal is
sufficient and appropriste to provide s basis for our opinion. The risk of no detecting o material misstaement
resulting from fraud s higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentivnal omissions. missepresentations, or the averride of internal control,

= Oain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order o design audil procedures (st are
appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the
Company”’s internal contraol.

*  Evaluate the appropriatencas of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management
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*  Conclude on the appropristeness of manngement's use of the going concern basis of account ing and, hased
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerininty exists relted to events or conditions that may
cast signilicant doubt on the Compatry’s ability to continue as o going concern. If we conelude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required w draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related dischosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Owr conelusions e based
on the swdit evidence obtained up W the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
my cause the Company to cease to continue 1s 4 going concern.

*  Evalume the overall presemtation, structure and content of the financial statements, ingluding the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying lransactions and cvems in o manner thai
achieves fuir presentation.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {eontinued )

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
liming of the audit and significont sudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identily during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governunce with o statement that we have complied with relevan! ethical
requirements fegarding independence, ond 1 communicate with them all relationships and other matters thal
mizy reasonibly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related sufepuards,

From the matiers communicated with thess charged with governance, we determine those matiers that were of
miost significance in the sudit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key padil
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless Taw or regulution precludes public diselosure
aboul the matter or when, in extremely rmure circwmstances, we determine that a matter should not e
commiunicaied in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expocted 1o
vutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on (ther Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Drring our awdit of the financial statements, we did not find the Company's viokation of the provisions of the

Compaiies Law or the provisions of the Company's Anticles of Associstion.

Far Al-Kharashi Co.

X

Sulicgfin A Al-Kharashi
Lic No. (91)

Rivadh:
Shasban 14, |443H
March 17, 20236



WAFHAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMEER 2021
(Saudi Riyals)
Nuote 2021 2020
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty, plant and equipment, net 5 88,629,802 95,540,216
Right of use Assets, net 6 2,384,268 2,744,955
Intangible Ascets, not 7 721,220 B4 402
Real Estate Investment, net & - 10,452 824
[nvestments at fair value through other comprehensive income 10 T4 441 673,826
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 92 459,731 110,306,223
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net 11 18,910,797 20,630,795
Inventory, net 12 15,150,921 21,248,791
Prepayments and ather receivables, net 13 5,703,185 6019977
Due from Related Parties 14=] 1,391,306 725,576
~ash and cash equivelents 15 9,330,328 2,391,880
IOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 30,586,537 5i.,m 'I.IJIL
FOTAL ASSETS 143,046,268 161,323,242
LOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share Capital 1 77,170,350 77,170,350
“uir Value reserve of Investments throusgh other comprehensive income 10 (531,258) (581,873)
Aemeasurement reserve of defined benefit plan reserve (33,914) (1428.717)
Accurnulated losses (23,745 ,401) (12,814 814)
FOTAL EQUITY 521,859,777 62 344 946
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITES
~0BN guarantee provision - related party 8- 4,150,345 4,950,407
~Img-tarm povermment loan 17 0D, (b0 16,000,000
<ong-term lease [iabilities [ 2,118,427 2416,127
Imployess® defined henefits linbilities 18 7,036,000 5758013
NOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 19,214,767 12,124,547
CURRENT LIABILITIES
-Dan guarantee provision - Related Party B-e 3,150,245 2,230,183
& comerts payahle 33,500,153 34,726,057
short-term leass Habilities [ 477,233 419,348
Acoried expenses and other payables 19 T.076,006 8,186,359
Aeorued dividends . | 1,193,417 1,194 832
Short-term government loan 17 19,500,000 12,000,000
Sales provisions 20 1,320,678 1,684,706
Fakat provision 22 4,714,993 6,392.274
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES T0971,724 66,853,749
TOTAL LIABILITIES 186,491 98,978,296
FOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 143,046,268 161,323,241
Financial Manager CEQ Authorized Board of directors

The eccompanying notes form an inteprated part of these finencial statement
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WAFHAH FUK INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPAN
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(Saudi Riyals)

Note 2021 z020
szles, net 23 64,967,601 83,777,853
Zost of sales (53,474,887) (64,363,423)
Gross profit 11,492,714 19,414,430
Administrative and General expenses 24 (10370,117) (9,145,073)
jelling and marketing expenses 25 (13,030,629) (16,763,934)
et loss from the main operations (11,908,032) (6A494,57T)
Fain on Fair value of real estate investment &1 . 333.368
*rovision for expected credit losses I, 13 (269,529) (1,326,059)
mpairment of property, Plants and Equipment (468,578) -
teversal of unnecessary spare parts provision 761,698 -
*rovision for impairment in inventory value 12 - (606.477)
*rovision for slow moving inventory 12 - (1.426.484)
“inance charges 17-1 {420,000) (630,000)
“inance cost & (168,598) (188,45T)
Jther revenue 26 3,528,801 1,482,535
Net loss before Zakat (8,944,538) (8.856,191)
Zakat 22 (1,986,049) (3,522,897)
et loss for the Year (10,930,587) {12,379,068)
ltems that will not be reclassified
o profit or loss:
Net change in Fair Value of investments 0 0,615 B4 360
dctuarial gain / (loss) of remeasurement of
lefined employees® benafit I8 1304 803 (1,056,317)
Fotal other comprehensive income {loss) for the Year 1,445418 (971,957T)
Fotal comprehensive loss for the year (9,485,169) (13,351,045)
oss per share of main operating 27 {1.54) (0.84)
3asic and diluted loss per share 27 {1.42) (1.60)

Financial Manager CEQf Authorized Bﬂrd-ql:.d‘n-umn

&
mber e
- am w

The sccompanying notes form an 1n1:g¢nlnd part of these financial statement
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AN
A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

D DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Saudi Riyals)
Remeasurement
Fair Value reserve of
reserveof  deflned benefit (Accumulated
Share Capital  Invesiments plan reserve tosses) Total

Balancs at | January 2020 200,000,000 (666,233) (372400) (123,263,376} 75,695,991
Met Loss for the Year = - (12,379.088)  (12,379,088)
Onher comprehensive loss for the
year - 84,360 {1,056,317) (971,957)
Capital reduction by amortizing
accumulated losses * (122,829,650) - - 122,829,650 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 77,170,350 (581,873) (1428,717)  (12,514,814) 62,344,946
Balance at 01 January 2021 77170350 1581,873) (1L428,717) (12,814 814) 62,344,946
Net Toss for the Year - - (10,930,587) {(10,930,587)
Ciher comprehensive incomsa for
the Year - 50615 [, 394 803 - LA45.418
Balance at 31 December 2021 77,170,350 (331,258) (33,914)  (23,745401) 52,859,777

* The Extraordinary General Assembly meeting held on 15 Shanban 1441 corresponding to 8 April 2020, the Board of
Directors to reduce the Company's capital by amortizing accumulated losses of SAR 122,829 550, the capital after
reducing SAR 77,170,350, or 61 4% of the capital, by canceling 12,282,965 shares of the company’s stock.

CEQ

Financial Manager Authorized Board a-!’-dquglun Member

=z=_

1
s —

= S

The scecomparying notes form an integrated part of these financial statement
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WAFRAH FUR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Saudi Riyals)

Cash Flows from aperating Activites:

Met loss for the year

Adjustments to:

Depreciation

Iinpairment of property, plants and equipment
Amortization

Provision for Employees’ Defined Benefit Liabilities
Provision for Expected Credit Losses

Bad debts during the year

Refund lighilities

Reversal of un-necessary spare parts provision
Loan Guarantee Provision - Related Party
Provision for Slow Moving lems

Damage from Provigion for Slow Moving Inventory
Provision for Impairment in Inventory Value

Gratin on sale of Real Estate Investments

Gain on sale Property, Plant and Equipment

Changes in:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepayments and other receivables

Acoounts payable

Accrued expenses and payables

Cush generated from eperation activitics
Zakat paid

Employees' detined benefits paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Puschase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of Investment Property
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and cquipment

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
Cash Flows from Finanelng Activities:

Due from related party

Lease liabilities paid

Covernmental Loan paid

Dividends paid

Net cazh uied in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent during the year

~-ash und cash equivalents at beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Met change in investments at Fair Value
capital reduction by amortizing accumulated losses
Fimancial Manager CED

12

2021 2020

(K,944,538) (B.B56,191)
8,024,815 9,112,126
458,578 »
173,182 181,912
871,902 893,278
269,529 1,326,059

- (52.016)

(364 028) (1,579.475)
(761,698) -

= (862,800)

- [,426,484

- (130,575)

- B0G,477

{47,176) (333,368)
(847,655) (192,145}
(1,157,089) 1,539,766
1,450,469 (3,325,105)
6,759 568 (6,144,518)
316,792 2,802,960
(1,186,904) 10,006,992
(1,110,353) (734,254)
5072483 4,145,841
(3,663,330) (1,176.924)
{1,199,112) (448, 827)
210041 1 520,090
(1,255,467) (1,772,465
10,500,000 -
B30,830 192,150
10,125,363 (1,5801,315)
(665,730) 35,062
(229.821) (303,350)
(2,500,000) ;
{1,405} (3,483)
(3.396,956) (271,771)
6,938 448 068,004
2,391,880 1,723,876
9,330,328 2,391,880
50,615 84,360

> 112 829,630

Authorieed Baard of di:uggz Member
M

e

-liﬂ.-.-_:h_"—"'-
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joini Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Suudi Riyals)

TIVITES

Walrah For Industry And Development Company is a Sandi Joint Stock Company registered aceording to
the commercial registration No, 1010076996 issued in Riyadh dated 24/ 10V 1410H {corresponding to
PRI F9AI). The pawd up copital of the Company is SR 200 Million compnsing of 20 million shares o o

par value of SR 10 per share, during the year 2020, the Company s capital was reduged by amortizing the
accumitlated losses w SR 77,170,350 from 7,717,035 shares, each valued at SR 10.

The principal setivities of the Company are the production of chilled and frozen meats, the manufacrure
of food products manufactured from potatoes, including (potate chips), the manufacture of cereal hreakfast
foods in the form of chips, and includes (com Nakes, chips .. ete.) and the manufacture of pasta of all
kinds,

The accompanying finuncial stalements represents Company's financial staternent and the those of jis
brianch's which are gs fiollowsy:

Commercial
Branch Name registration No. Activity

Walrah for Industry and
Development €'0). - Jeddah 4030108227 Marketing of the company's
products
Wadrah for Indusiny and
Development OO, ~ Dammam 205002 EELS whaolezale of  food and
beverages
Wafrah for Industry and
Development CO. — Khamis Mushail SHES338] 10 Marketing of the company's
proxkucts
Walrah foctory for pasts and noodles 1010320947 Macaromi industry of all kinds
Branch of Walrah for Industry and Development 1011016029 Feed production
Wafrah food factory LO10320946 Foods imdusiry from Lhe grain
Walrah factory for gran products 010320052 Foods industry from the grain
Walrah fosod factory 100320055 Chilled and  froren  meat
production
Wafrah fisctory for freceing vegetables 110320956 Pickles and indusiry
Branch of Wafrah for Industry and Development 101 1016028 Drates drying end packing and

Muanufacture of their products
BASIS OF PREFPARATION

(a)  Applicable sccounting standards :
These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Iniernational Financinl Reporting
Standords (IFRS) os endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
proncuncements that are issued by Saudi Organizntion for Certified Public Acconntants (“SOCPA™)

(b} basis of prepare linanclal statements:
The financinl statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excep for certamn financial
agsets that are measured wt fair value through OC1 ond certain financial assets at fair value measured
through O] at fair value and financial assets and liabilities accounted at amortized cosi.

(e} Functional and presentation currency:
The linancisl statements are presented in Saudi Rival, which is the Company's functional currency

()} Use of Accounting judgmenis and estimates:
The preparation of these fnancial statements requires manogement 1o wse Judgments and estimuaies
that affect the application of sccounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, labilities,
income and expenses, Actunl results may differ from these estimates.

1



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Juint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2021

{Saudi Riyals)

() (Fning concern:

The company incurred o logs of approximately SAR 10,9 million and approximately SAR 1 2.4 mullion for
the twio vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively, i addition to the company's current
liahilitics as on Docember 31, 2021 excoeding its curment assets by SAR 20,385, 187 which indicates Due
1o the existence of fundumental uncertainty, it may cost great doubt shout the compimny's ability o survive
as @ going concern and the company may not be able to realize jts assels and Fulfil its obligations in the
nerrmal course ol activity. The management conducted an assessment of the company's ability o contimue
s i existing entity, and concluded that the company has the MECessary resources W continue operating in
the foresceable future for o period of not bess than 12 months from the ke of approval of these financial
statements. 1he company s management seeks to improve the financial cotidditions by increasing sales and
reducing expenses in order 1o reduce the cost of production fo enhance the competitiveness of 1l
company's products and the management intends to benefit from the initiatives Imunched by the Soudi
Industrial Development Fund through s request to reschedule the balance of the existing loan, which will
affect the balance of current liabilities. In addition, the company was able 10 reduce the net losses for years
2020 and 2021 by 51,20 % and 11,70 % respectively which indicates the Improvement in company
performunce, and accordingly, these financial statements were prepured on the basis of going concem

+ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN TING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the most tmiportant accounting podicies followed by the COMmpany:
-1 New standards, amendments to stundards and interpretations

The Company hag applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reponting period commencing | Junuary 2021,

Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 16 interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 2

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, in¢luding
the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one, The Phase 2 amendments provide
additionel temporary reliefs from applying specific IAS 19 and IFRS 9 hedge RCeounling requircments
1o hedging relationsiips directly affected by IBOR reform,

Amendment to IFRS 16, *Leases’ — COVID-19 related rent concessions

Ax a result of the coronavires (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees,
In Muy 2020, the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (“IASH™) published an amendment 1o
IFRS 16 thut provided an optional praciical expedicnt for lessces from assessing whether 1 rent
concession related to COVID-19 4y a lease mosdification. On 31 March 202 |, the IASB published an
additional smendment 1o extend the date of the practical expedicnt from 36 June 2021 10 30 June 2022,
Lessees can select 10 account for such rent concessions in the same wisy s they would il they were
not fease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession ax variahle
lease payments in the periodis) in which the event or condition that nggers the redoced payment
OCCLITS.

The adoption of above amendments does not have amy matenol impact on the Financial Statements
during the vear.



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVE LOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ctntinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 15 2021
(Saudi Riyuls)

3. SIGNI UNTING : (Continued)

3-1 Standards issucd but not yet effective

Following are the new standards and amendments to standards which are effective for unnual periods
begimning on or after 1 January 2022 and earlicr application is permitted; however, the Company ls
et warly ndopted them in preparimgg these Financial Stilemenis,

Amendments te IAS 1, *Presentation of financial statements® on classification of liabdlitics
These narrow-scope amendments 1o 1AS 1, *Presentation of financial statements’, clarify that
liabalsties are classificd s either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist o the end
af the reporting period, Classification is unufTected by the expectations of the Enlity or events alier
the: reporting date (for example, the receipt of & waiver ar 3 hresch of covenant). The amendment
also clarifies what IAS | means when it refers to the *seftlement” of & linbility.

Amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, 1A% 35
- IFRS 3, *Business combinations’ update s reference in IFRS 3 1o the Conceplual Framework

for Financil Reporting withow changing the accoamting  regquirements for bosiness
coambinations,

IAS 16, "Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of
property, plant and equipment wmounts received From selling itens produced while the
company s preparing the asset for its intended vse. Instend, a company will recognise such
salex proceeds and related cost in profit or boss

1AS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent habilities and contingent assets' specify which cosis a
vompany icludes when assessing whether a controct will be loss-making,

Amendments to [AS 1, Practice statement 2 and [AS §

I'he amendments aim 1o improve mecounting policy disclosures and 1o help users of the financinl
slatements to distinguish between changes in aceounting estimates and changes in secounting
pelngies.

Amendment 1o IAS 12 - deferred tax related (o assets and labilithes urising from a sinple
Irunsaction

Phese amendments require companies 1o recognise defermed tax on transactions thot, on initial
recognition give rise 1o equal amounts of taxable and deduetible temporary differences,
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Suudi Joint Stk Cis

nyl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (comtimmed )

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(Suudi Riyals)

3-3 Property, plant and equipment’s

< Recogailion and messurement

liems of property and equipment are messured at cost less sccumulated depreciion

fiasses

and impairment

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the nssel.

When parts of an tem of property and equipment have different usefial lives, they are accoonted for as
Fems (majuor companents) of property and equipment,

Cinins and losses on disposal of an ftem of property and cquipment are determined by comparing the
procesids from disposal with the carrying amount of property und etjuipment and are recognized net within

in the statement of profit or Joss,

- Subsegueni cosiy
The cost of replscing part of an

tem of property and equipment is recognived in the corrying amount of

the item if it is proboble that @

he Tuivme economic benefing

embodied within the part will flow 1o 1he

company and its eost can be mesisured relably,

The carrying amoun of the replaced part is derecognized,

The costs of the

duy-to-day servicing of propeny and equipment

are recognized in statement of profit or

b 5% ineurmed.

- Depreciation

ltems of property and equipment are depreciated on straght-line basis m statement of income over the
estimated useful lives of each component, Leased assets are deprecisted over the lesse term or on the

shorter useful lives of the assers

The estimated annual depreciation mites for property,
same os for the previous vear und details as follows:

Machinery and equipment’s
Buildings

Towly

Aresian wells

Furniture and fixtire

Air comidifions

Muotor vehicles

Fitting and equipment’s

34 Real estate invesimenis

Real estute investment 1s & property ncguired either 1o earn rentsl income of 1o
but mist for the purpose of selling it through the normal
prichuction or supply of goods or serviees or for administrative purposes,

plant and equipment during the current vear are the

25555
- 15%
5-15%W
5
15=15%
15 %%
251

16 %%

incresse 1 value or both,
nctivities of the Company. It s not used for
Investment propertics are stated

at cost and their fur values are disclosed in the notes 10 the financial stubemenis, which are estimnaied

wrnually by an independent
petive renl estite misrket.

tel estule expert based on the market prices of those properties within in
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Sawdi Joint Stock Company)

NUTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS feontimed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Riyals)

(Continued)

1-5 Intangible asseis
Intangible assets other than goodwill are measured at cost less accumulated amorization and accumulated
losses of impairment, if any.

The intangible assets are amortized on # straight-line basis over the sconomic life of 7 years.

Subsequent expenditure 1 capiialized only when it ts probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company, and the costs can be mensured reliably,

The residual values of the intangible assets, their useful lives and indicators of mpairment are reviewed
ut the end of cach financial year snd udjusted for o future effict, il neoessary,

A=l Avvounts receiviible

Trade receivahles are recognised initially at fair value and sobsequently measured af amortised cost using
the eflective interest method, less provision for impairment. For impairment of financial assets refer 1o
MNole 3-18

3=T Inveniory

linventories ure mensured at the lower of cust and net realissble value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. Cost includes all direct manufacturing expenditure baged on the normal level
of setivity and transpertation and handling costs. Net realisable value comprises estimated selling price
less further production costs to complition and appropriate selfing and distribation costs. Allowance is
e, where necessury for slow moving inventories, Cost of inventorics is recognised a8 an expense,

3-8 Cush and cash equivalents

Cash ind cush equivalents consists of cash and banks balances amounts and demand deposits, which can
be converted into cash within a period of three months or Tess {1f any),

39 Employees Benefits

Short Term Obligations

Lushilities for wages and salaries and any other short term benefits that are expecied to be settled whally
within 12 months after the end of the period i which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of eoployees services up 1o the end of the reporting period ond ore mensured ot the
amounts expected to be pmd when the Labilities are seuled. The linbilities are presented os eurrent
emplovee benefit obligations in the stitement of financial position.

Post-Employmient Obligations

Defined Contribution Plaps

Contributions to defined contribution: superannuation plans are expensed when the employees have
rendered servioe entitling them to the conirtbations,

Retirement benefit in the form of Genersl Organization of Social Insurunce {GOSH is o defined
contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, ether than the contribution puyable to the GOSI,
The Company recognizes contribution payable 1o the GOSI as mn expense, when an emplover renders
the related service

Defined Benefits Plans

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method, Re-measurcments, comprising of sctuarial gains and losses, are recopnised immediately in the
statement of financial position with o corresponding debit or credit to retained enrmings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur, Re-measurements are not reclassi Fieet 10 profid
of loss in subsequent periods.

The discount rate for discounting the estimated future cash outflows is requined to be based on the yield
o corporate bonds of duration and currency consistent with the lisbilities, Where there is no deep market
m corporate bonds in the currency under consideration, the yields on povernment bomds gre used.



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2021
{Sandi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
- 9 Employees Benefits (Continued)
Pust service costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtallment and the date on which the Company recognizes relaled restructuring costs,
Net interest 15 caleulated by spplying the discount rate 1o the net defined benchit lishility, The Company
recognizes the changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of revenue, “general and
admemistrative expenses’ and “selling and distribintion expenses’ in the statement of profit or loss,

3=100 Accounts payable

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the falre for goods or services received, whether
billed by the supplicrs or not

311 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company hias o present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated relinbly, and it is probable that an cwtflow of cconomic benefits will be
recpuared to settle the obligation,

3121 Estimated Fakat

Zakot 15 provided on acerual basiy in accordonce with the Regulations of the General Authority for Zokat
aaudd Income (“DEIT) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, The zakat provision is charged 1o the statement of
profit or losses, sy differences resulting from the finnl assessments are recorded in the year of their
finalization,

Lakot 15 calculated on an accrual basis and is calculated on the basis of net income adjusted for kot
during the vear or on the basis of zakat caleulated according 1o the laws. Any differences in the provision
pr:vlauueﬂl'y recognized are settled when the final approval is received by the General Authority for Zakal
anad [neome,

A-11 Related partics transactons

Related poarty
A related party is u person or entity that is relazed to the entity that is prepirng its fnanciol statements.

o]l A person of @ close member of that person’s family s related to o reporting entity if that person:
(1) Hus control or joint contral of the reporting entity;
(i1 Has significant miloence over the reporfing entity; or
(i1} 15 a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting
gnliEy?
{(h) An entity 15 related 1o a reparting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(1) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiry und fellow subsidiary is related to the others),
(i3 One emily is on associnte or joint venture of the other entity {or an sssociate or joint venture of a
member of o proup of which the other entity is @ member).
(i) Both entities are joint vendures of the swme third pany,
iiv) Ome entity is @ joint venture of a third entity and the other entity 15 an associate of the thind entity.
{v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees ol cither the reporting
enlity or an entity related 1o the reporting entity. IT the reporting entity ix itsel [ such a plan, the
sponsoring emplovers ane also related to the reporting entity,
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by o person identified in ().
(wity A person identified in (a) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parem of the entity),
(vun) The entity, or any memiser of & group of which # s a part, provides key management personnel
services 1o the reporting entiry or o the parent of the reparting entity
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NUOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

(Sandi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continged)
314 Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s mensured hased on the consideration specilied n o contract with customer and excludes
amount collected on behalf of third parties

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product oF service to a customer
The principles in IFRS 15 are applisd using the following five steps:

Step 1: The Company sccoumts for a comtract with a customer when
* The contruct has been approved und the partics are committed:

= Each party's rights are identified:

* Payment tlerms are defined:

* The contract has commercinl substanee; and

* Collection is probable.

Step 2: The Company identifics all promised goods or services in s contract and determines whether

to account for ench promisod good or service as o separate performance obligation. A good or service

s distinct and is separsted from ather obligations in the contract if both:

= The customer can benefit from the good or service separstely or wgether with other resources thid
are remlily available to the customer; and

* The geeod o service is separately identifiable from the other poods or services i the contrict

Step X The Company determines the tmnssction price, which s the amount of conssderation
expects to be entitled to m exchange for transferring promised goods or services o o customer,

Step 4: The transaction price in an arrangement is allocated 1o ench separate performance ohligaton
based vn the relative standalone selling price of the good or service being provided 1o the customer

Step 5: Kevenue 1s recognized when control of the goods or services is mansfermed 1o the customer,
The Company transfers o good or service when the customes olbtains control of that good or service,
A vustomer obtams control of o good or serviee 1F it has the ability 1o direet the use of and receive
the benefit from the good or serviee,

In comparative period, revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will Muow to the Company and the revenue can be relihly mcasured, regardless of when the
paymen? g received.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking mio accoun
contrictially defined terms of payment and excluding txes or dhuty, The Company has concluded
that it is the principal m all of ity revenue armrangements, has pricing latituske, and 15 also exposed 1o
inveniory and credit nsks,

Significant accounting judgments and estimutes Tor Feyvene
The following is a description of the accounting policies and important provisions of the main
activities that the company generies its revenues:

(A Selling products

Revenue i recognized when control over those products ar services is transferred, and it is when (he
products or services are delivered 1o the customer, Delivery occurs when peoducts are shipped 1o the
specilied location, and the nisk of deprecistion and loss has heen transferred (o tlaee custinmer.

In these contracts, the company is primirily responsible for fulfilling the obligation 1o provide food
and other specific products. The company assumies inventury nsk before the food prodiscts are
trunsported 1o customers. In addition, the company has discretion in sefting prices for specific food
products. The company also bears credit risk on these tronsactions as it is abligated to pay the supplier
even if the customer fails to pay

Ly



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joind Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2021

_{5amdi Riyaly)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-14 Hevenue recognition {continued)
Significant aceaunting Judgments and estimates for revenue (continued)

(B} Discounts on sales velume
Revenue m ofien recognized with sales volume discounts over |2 months, Revenue from these sales
15 recogmzed based on the price specified in the contract, afier deduction of the estimated discounts.

The contracted discount rate and accumulated expericnee are used to determing the size of those
discounts, and revenue 18 recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the opposite will
nod oceur. The contractual obligation of expected discounts is recognized in the amount of amouants
payable 1o customers in respect of sales made until the end of the reporting period,

(") Sales returns
Revenue is recognized minus sales returms

The sccumuluted experience is used (o estimate the smount of sales retumns using the projected value
methodd, and revenue is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the opposite will
ot oceur. Expected sales retums are recognized in the mmount ol amounts payable 1o customers m
respect of sales made up to the end of the reporting periad,

Revenue is the fair value of the considerntion received or recetvishle against the gosds sold, net of
returns, trde discount and rebutes. The bmpany recognises revenue when the cistomer obtains the
grends or acknowledges their acceplance.

Products are muinly sold on 5 sules or returmn basis, and a retum sales allownnce is calculated on (he
baasis of the expected return from expired or damaged products. The expected sales returns are offset
dgnst revenue with the associated elfect of the sales nibowinee.

Goods ure sold at significam discounts retroactively on the basis of total sales over i | Z-month perod,
Revenve from these sales is recopnized based on the price specified in the contrac! minus the
estimated discoants. Accumulated experience is used 10 estimste and provide discounts and revenue
1 recagnized W the most Hkely extent that there will be no matcrial reversal,

Ihere i no companent of an existing financing companent oy sales are made in either cush or ferm
debt in line with market practice,

3-15 Expenses

Expenses incurred by the Company consist of selling wnd marketing expenses, general amd
adminisirstive expenses and operating expenses. Production costs are charged of foll cost of
materials, direct labor and indireet industrial costs. The expenses resulting from the Company's
elforts related w the marketing, sale and distribation of fnished products are classified s a separate
stemmn under the heading of selling and marketing expenses, (ther direct and inelirect expenses relating
bo management that are not related 1o the production funetion or the sabes and marketing fumction are
classafied s general und admimistrative expenses, The Janl expenses are dastributed, 1f necessary,
hetween administrative and genern| expenses, selling and marketing expenses and aperating expenses
on o consstent busis. The scerval principle i applied in charging the fnancial period with
adminissative and general expenses and selling and marketing expenses.



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Snudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A-16 Financial Instruments

IFRS % introduces new classification and measurement requirements for financial asseis. [FRS © requires
all financinl mssets 1o be classified and subscquently messured at either umortized cost ar fir value. The
classification depends on the business model for manugmg the financial msset and the contractunl cash
Aow characteristics of financial asael, detcrmined at the thme of initial reeognition.

Financial assets are classfied inm the following specified categories under [FRS 9;

Debt mstruments ai amortized cost:
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT), with gains or losses
recycled 1o profit or boss on de-recognition;

=  Equity instruments st FYOUL with no recyeling of giins or losses o profit or loss on de-
recoenition: wnd

*  Financinl ssscts at fair value through profit and boss (FVPL),

{a} Finuncial assets classificd us amortized cosi
bt instruments thar meet the following conditions are subscquently measured at amortized cost Jess

rmpairment loss (excepl for deb investments that are desipnnted s at fasr value through profit or loss on
tnitia] recognition )

I+ The asset is held within o business mode] whose objective is 1 hold assets in order 1o collece
contracival cash Nows; and

2- The contractual terms of the instrement give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that ane anlely
payments of prncipal and interest on the prineipal smoust cutstiuding.

I a financial asset does not meet hoth of these conditions, it is measured ot fair vilue.

The Company makes an assessment of a business mode] at portfolio level as this best reflects the
way the business is masaged and information is provided o munagement, In making an assessment
of whether an asset is held within o business model whose objective is o hold sssets in order o
colleet contractual cash flows, the Company considers:

*  Munagement’s stated policies and objectives for the partfolio wnd the operation of those
pulicies in practice;

*  Therisks that affect the performance of the bisingss made] {wnd the financial agsets held within

that business model) and, in particular, the winy those risks are managed;

How management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;

Whether the management’s srategy focus on CAMINg contrsciual commuassion ineame:

The degree of frequency of any expected asser sules;

The reason for any asset sales: and

Whether ussets that are sold are held for sn extended period of time relative to their contractunl

maturity or are =old shortly after sequisition or an extended time hefore maturity,

In assessing whether the contructual cash flows are sofely payments of principul end interest,

the Company will consider the contrsctal terms of the instrument. Tars will include assessing

whether the financial asset confains o contraciual term that could change the timing or umoun

of contraciual cash Mows such that it would not meet this comdition,

Income 15 recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments measured subseguently

at nmaortized cost, lmerest is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Drebt instruments that are subsequcatly measured at amortized cost are subject 1o impairment,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 1021
(Saudi Riyaly)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

}-16 financial instruments (continmed)

(b} Financial assets designated as FVOCT with recycling
Dbt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently messured st FVOCT:

& The financial asset is held within o business misdel whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

* The contractual terms of the financial ssset give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are
sulely puyments of principal and interest on the principal smownt outstanding,

For debt financial instruments measured a1 FVOUL, commission income and mpairment losses
or reversals ane recognized in the statement of income and computed in the same manner os for
financinl assets measured ot amortized cost,

All other changes in the carrying amount of these mstruments are recopmzeed in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the mvestment revalustion reserve. When these
mstruments are derecognized, the cumulitive gans or lusses previously recogmized in oiher
comprehensive meome are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss

(¢} Financial assets clussified ax FVPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified os ot FVPL. unless the Company designates an
investment that is not held for trading s at FVOCH on initial recognilion.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized coss of FVOCT criteria are measured at FVYPL
In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria but &re designated o at FVPL
to aviol sccounting mismatch are measured t fair value through income stitement. A debd
nstrument may be designated as at FYPL upon initinl recognition if such designation eliminides
or significantly reduces s measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise From
Measmng assets or liabilites or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.
The Company has not designated any debt instrument s FVPL since the dute of initial
application of IFRS 9 (i.e, | January 2018,

Debr instruments are reclassified from amortized cost o FYP] when the business model is
changed suech that the amortized cost criteris are no longer mei. Reclassificution of deb
nstruments that are designated as at FVPL on itial recopnition is not alkowed,

Financial assets at FVPL are measured ot fair value at the end of ench reporting period, with any
giins or bosses arising on re-mensurement recognized in staement of profit or loss.
Cotmnission income on debt instruments os st FVPL ig included in the siaterment of profit or loss.
Dividend mcome on invesiments in cunty msiuments ot FVPL is recognized in the stsiement
of profit or loss when the Company s right 1o receive the dividends is established in secordance
with IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers,

(d) Investment in equity instruments designated as FVOC]

On mitial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an mstrument-hye

instrument bisis) 1o designate investments cquity instruments as st FVOCT Designation as

wt FVOCT is not permitoed if the equity investment is held for trading,

A finaawial asset or finaencial lability is held fior trading if.

= I i goquited of incurmed principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
lermm;

* On initinl recogenition it is part of 4 portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of o recent actual pattern of short=term
profit-taking; or

» It s a derivative {except for & derivative it is o financial Euarantes contrct or a designated
and effective hedging instrument)
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Sauwdi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FUR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1, 2021
(Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A-16 financial lnstruments (continued)

{d) lmvestment in equity instruments designated ns FVOC) icontinued)

Investmenis in cquity instruments at FVOC] are initially measured ot fair value plus transaction
custs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair valoe with irmins and losses arising from changes
in fair valwe recognized in other comprehensive income and nccumulated in other reserves, Gain
onel losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss and
o impiirment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Investment in ungquoted couity
instruments which were previously accounted for at cost in accordance with [AS 39, are now
measured af Tuir value, The cummlative gam or loss will not he reclassi fied to the statement of
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
Company's nght 1o receive the dividends is established in accordance with [AS 18 Revenue,
unless the dividends clearly represent s recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Fuir valoe reserve includes the cumulative med change in falr value of equity investment
measured at FVOCT When such equity instriments are derecognized, the reluted cumulative
amaount in the fair value reserve is tronsferred 10 sccumulated Tosses

lmpalrment of Mnancial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses { BCL) on debt instrements
that are measured st amortized costor st FVOCT, Jense receivables, trade receivables, as well s
on boan commitments and financial guaraniee contructs, No mmpaimment bss is recognized for
mvestments in equity mstruments, The amount of expected credil losses reflects changes
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument,

The Company upplies the simplified spproach 1o calculae impairment on irade receivables and
this always recognizes lifetime ECL on such exposures. ECL on these financial assets are
estimuated nzing & Now rare based on (he Company s historical credit loss experience, sdjusted
for fuctors that are specific 1o the deblurs, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reparting date, including
time value of moncy where appropriate.

For all other Mnancial instruments, the Compuny applies the general approach to caleulate
impurment. Lifetime ECL is recognized when there hus been a signiticant increuse in credit
risk since initial recognition and 12 months ECL s recognized the crodit risk on the financial
nstrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. The assessment of whether
credit sk of the financial instrmment has nereased significantly smce initial recognition is made
through considering the change i nisk of defaul vgcuming over the remaining life of the
financial instrumen.

Measurement and recognition of expectod credil lnsses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the prohability of default, loss given
default (Le. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at defaull. The
assessment of the probability of default is based on historical data addjusted by forward-looking
information az deseribed above,

As o the exposure at defanlt for financial assets, this is represented by the assets” gross currying
amount ot the reporting date. Exposure a1 default for of balance sheet items is arrived of by
applying a eredit conversion factor to the undrawn portion of the caposure.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBEM 31, 2021

(Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A-16  Financial Instruments {continued)

Where lifetime ECL s measured on o collective basis o cater for cases where evidence of significant

wnereases in credit nisk at the individual instrument level may not vet be available, the financial

instruments are grouped on the following basis

® Nature of financial instruments (i.e, the Company s trede and other receivahles), are prsessed for
expected credit losses on an individual basis),

» Past-due stulus;

o Nuture, and size industry of deblors; and

o bExternal credit rutings where available,
The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profii or loss for all
linancial instruments with o corresponding adjustment 1o their carrying amount through o loss
ullowance atcount, exeept for investments in debt instruments that are measured af FVOCL, for
which the loss allowance 1s recognized in profit or losses statement and necumulated in the fair
value reserve, and docs not reduce the carrving smount of the financial asset in the interim
condensed staterment of financial position,

Derecognize of finnncial assets

The Company derecognizes a financinl asset only when the contractual right= 1o the cash Tows from the
assets expires; of il transfers the financinl asset or substantiolly all the risk and rewards of ownership to
ansther entity, IF the Company neither iransfer nor retains sithstantially all the rsks wnd rewand ol
ownership and continues to control the transferred asser, the Company recognizes its retsined inlerest in
the wssel wnd associated liability for amounts it may lave 1o pay. 1 the Company retisins substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company coniinues 1o recognize
the fimancial asset and also recognizes a colliteralized borrowing for the proceeds recenved

Financial Habilities
Finamcial labilities carried at amortwed cost have been classified and measured of amortized cost using
the effective yvield method,

For financsal lishilities that are designated as at FVPL, the smount of change in the fair vabue of the
financial lability that is attrbutable to chinges in the credit sk of that lishility 15 recognized interim
vondensed other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the Hability's
eredit msk m imterim condensed vther comprehensive income would create or enlarge an pecounting
mismdeh in interim condensed comprehensive income. Changes in fair value miribstable 10 o financisl
lishility's credit risk are not subsequently reclissified to inferim condensed comprehensive income.

The liability eredit reserve includes the cumulative changes in the fair vilue of the financial Tubilities
designated us at fair value throagh profit or less that are attributable to changes m the eredit risk of these
labilities and which would not create or enlarge accounting mismatch in interim condensed
comprehensive income. Amount presented in lability credit reserve are not subscguently transferred to
mterim condensed comprehensive income. When such investments are derccognized, the related
cumulative amount in the lisbility credit reserve is transferred 10 retained camings. Since the date of initial
application of IFRS 9 {i.e. 1 January 2018, the Company has also not designated any financial liability ns
wl FYIPL,

Derecogniee of Minancial Habilities
The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligstions are
discharged, oancelled or expired

3-17 Foreign currency transactions
Iransactions i loreign currencies are ransluted into Saudi Riyals during the persod ai the exchunge rates
prevailing at the dute of the transactions. Monetary assets and linbilities denominated in foreign currencies ans
translided mto Sash Rivals ot the date of the fimuncial staiements af the exchinge mfes previnling on thai date.
Drlferences ansing from the franslution of foreign currencies into Saudi Rivaly are recogmnized in the
i stutement, profits or losses,
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Juint Steck Company)

NOTES TU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eontinged)

FUOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASaudi Rivak)

3. 5IGN ANT N LICIES (Continued)

3-18 Offsctting
A offsenting is made between finuncial gssets und financial lipbilites and the net amount is reported in the
stutement of financial position only when binding legal rights are availshle and also when they are scithed
an a clearing basis or the verification of the assets and the settlement of labalities at the same 1jme

. AN r NS AT I

In preparing these financial statements, mansgement has made judgements, gstimates and assumplions
that affect the application of the Compuny's sccounting policies and the reported amounts of assels,
linhilities, income and expenses. Actunl results muy. ditTer from these estinies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated und are hised on historical experience and other
Factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
The estimates and assumptions that have significant risk of enusing a material adjustment o the carrying
amount of asscts and labilities within the neat financil year are addressed helow;

4.1 Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting pelicies, management has made the following
Iudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the linancial statements:

(rperating leases

Management established on the hasls of an evaluation of the terms and conditions for the operating lease
arrangements thit not all the significant risks and rewands il pwnership of land and buildings lensed for
warchousing and distribution will been transferred to the Company. Consequently, the land and warehouse
buikdings are recognized s operaling leases,

4.2 Assumptions and estimates

(1} Impairment reviews
IFRS requires management to undertake an anmual test for ingpuirment of indefinite lived assets and, for
finite lived assets. 1o test for impairment if events of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
ol of an gssel may nol be recoverable.
Impairment testing is an ares involving manugement judgement, requiring inter alii an assessimenl s to
whether the camrying valoe of assets can be stipported by the net present value of future cush flows derived
from such assets using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an approprinte rate. In
calculating the net present value of the future cash flows. certain sssumptions are required o be made in
fespect of highly uncertnin matters including management's expectations of:

) Lirowth in carnings before interest, tax, deprecistion and amonization (EBITDA}, caleuluted as adjusted

aperating profit betore deprecintion and amortization.

b} Timing and quantum of future capital ex penditure,

¢l long-term growth rates; and

d} Selection of discount rates 1o reflect the risks tnvolved,

¢) The amount of mining reserves expected to be extracied chirring the relevant yenr,

Changing the assumptions selected by management, m particular the discount rate and growth rate
assumptions used in the cash flow projections, coukd significamily affeet the Company's impairmsent

eviluation snd hence resulis
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Sandl Rivals)
4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

4-1 Assumptions and estimates (continued)

(2 lmpairment losses on rade and other receivables
Trace and other receivables are stated w their amorised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated wrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balunces and historical experience adjusted appropriately for the future expectations. Individual
tride receivishles are written ofT when management deems them not to be collectible,

i3y Measurement of defined benefit oblizations

The Company s net obligation in respect of defined benefit schemes is caleulated by estimating the amoant
of future benefit that employees have enmed in retum for their service in the current and prior periods:
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The present value of the obligation s determined based on actuarial valuation st the statement of financial
position date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises esach
period of service as giving rise o an additionn] unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures. The
obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash Bows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defmed bencfit plan, are determined by reference o
US bond vields, {as the Saudi Riyal is pegged o the US dollar), adjusted for an additional risk premium
reflecting the possibility of the linkage being broken.

(4} Estimate of cokat
Management estimates the zakon expenses according o instructions and active law,

{5} Determining whether the Company or 8 compuny part of it Is acting as an agent or principal
Principles of IFRS 15 are applied by ddentifying ench specified (i.c. distinet) good or service promised to
the customer i the contract and evalusting whether the entity under canzideration obains control of the
specified good or service before it 15 transferred to the enstomer. This assessmend reguires significant
Judgement hased on specific facts and circumstances.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Judnt Steck Company )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Sandi Riyals)

6. RIGHT OF USE ASSET 18

e table below shows the right to use assets balance in and the depreciation charged as follows:

Lands
LT
Baliunce at | January 3503728
Additions doring the vesr -
Balance ot 31 December _ 3. 503,718
Accumuluted depreciation
Balance @ 1 January T58,773
Charge dunmg e vear 360 65T
Balunve at 31 December 1,119,460
vt b ¥
31 December 2021 284 268
31 Deecember 2020 2,744,955
Lease obligations ax a1 31 December are as follows:
L nzl 220
Mon-current bease obligations 2,128,422 2416127
Current lease obligations 477,232 414,348
Total lease obligations 2,005,654 2835475

The finimee costs from the recognized lease obligations during the vear ended December 31, 2021
SAR 168898 (December 31, 2020; SAR 188.497),

T INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Accounting
programmer
Lost
Ralance at | January 1,212,748
Additions daring the yvear -
Balunce ot 3) December 1212748
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at | Jonunry 318346
Charge during the year 173,182
Balance ot 31 Decembser 4u] 578
g _ WAds
December 3, 2021 721,220
December 31, 2020 04,402




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOFMENT COMPANY
(A Suudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continmed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Riyals)

8. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

i 1 2021 2020

East Asia Company for Development
and Agricultural Investment { Nole ¥a) l4,285% 10006, 00 10,0060, 00
Janrt for Agricultural Investment - under liguidation
[ Nute Kb} 10.1% 7 050,000 7 050,000
Rakhun Agricultural Investment snd development
Company (Mote Be) R.AIEY, 1612717 162717

18,662,717 18,662,717
Foir value Josses from investments at fair valoe
throwgh profii or loss (Note 8d) [1R062TIT) (I8.662.717)

a) Invesiment in East Asia Company for Development and Agricubtural Investment (Closed Joint Stock

Company ) represent an investment of 14,285 % from the company's paid up capitsl amounting to
SAK 70 mitlion.

b1 Investment in Jannad for Agriculieml Investment (A Saudi Limited Liabilities Company ) represent an

=

d

_—

-

investient of 11.1 % in the company s capital which amounts o SAR 63 million and the remaining
halomce of SAR 30,000 represents the company s shares in pre-operating expenses

Investment in Rakhaa for Agricultural Investment {an Egyptian joint stock company) reprezents an
investment of 8.628% of the paid-up capital of B0 million Egyptian pounds (eguivalent i 18692, 753
Suude nyals), as on March 6, 2019, the partners of Jonnat Agriculiural Investment Company decided
{ A compurry under liquidation (assignment of investment in Rakhaa for Agricultural Investment (i
Egyptian joind stock company] by transferring the ownership of the shares and shares owned by the
company in Rukhaa for Agriculiuel Investment {an Egyption jomt stock company) which is 62,154
shares 1o the partners of Jannsl Agricultural Investment Company (a company under liguidation)
Mrectly, each according 1o his share in the company. Accordingly, on December 11, 2019, the
oamership of 6,902 shares (equivalent to SAR 1,6012,717) wais trunsferred from the shares of Rakhas
Agricultural Investment Company (an Egyptinn joint stock company) from Jannat Agricultural
Investment Company (2 compuny under liguidation) in fivour of Wafra Indusirial and Development
Company. Due to the insbility 1o reach the fair value of Rakhaa Agricultural Investment Company (an
Egyptian joint stock company) in the Egyptian Stock Exchange market, o total impairment of the
investimenl value n the company has been proven, with a value of 8AR 1,612,717, which constitules
100%, of the investment value.

During the year 2016 fair value losses has been recorded in Jannal for Agriculiural Investment
Company - under bquidation gmounting to SAR 3 287 562, and during the year 2017 fair value losses
hax been recorded i Jannat for Agricoliural Investment Company - under liguidation amounting to
SAR 3762438 With a total fair value losses of the ovestment value of Jannoi SAR 7,050,000
representing 100% of the value of the investment, and fair valoe losses his been recorded in Enst Asin
Company for Development and Agriculiural invesiment amounting 1o SAR 758,562,

During the year 2018 fair valug losses has been recorded in Bast Asia Company Tor Development und
Agricultural investment amounting to SAR 6,499,675, During the vear 2019 fasr vislue losses hus been
recorded in East Agia Company for Development and Agricultursl investmen! amounting to SAR
2,741,763 with a total fur value losses of the invesimeni value of East Asia Company for Development
representing 100% of the value of the investment. and fuir value losses has been recorded in Rakhaa
for Agricultural Investment amounting to SAR 1,612,717 which constitutes 100% of the value of the
mvesimsent,
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joind Steck Company )

NOTES TU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Riyals)

H. INY "ALLET FROFIT Continued)

¢} The company his guarunice obligations represented in the company's shure of 8,063,390 Saudi niyals,
or B.628% of the loun guaraniee amount gramied 1o others (Rakhas Agncoliural Investment and
devilopment Company - Egyptian Joint Stock Company by the Saudi Fund for Development at an
amount of 93.5 million Saudi riyals. A full-value allocation has been created 10 meet this obligation.

The loan guarantee provision - related party movement represents as follow:;

2021 2020
Balince at 1 Jununry 7.200.50) ®.063,390
Paid during the vear - - (K62 K00
Total loan guarantee provision 7.200,590 T.200,590
Current portion of loan gurraniee
provision - relaed party (3,150.245) (2,250, 1 K3)
Non-current portion of leun
guarantee provision - related party 4.0050,345 4,950,407
9. REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS, NET
z 021 _ 020
Lands investmints — Jan - 11,127, 08
Real estale investments impairment provision (9-1) = i674,854)
. 10,452,824
9-1 Movement in provision for impairment of real estate Investments
— W o
Halance a | January 674 HE4 1,008,252
Cigins on Fair value of real estate investment = (333 16K}
Provision disposed of the sale process (6746841 -
Baknce ot 3| December - 07 BE4

Investment represent lund purchised by the Company based on the Boards decigion at its meeting duled
4 Drecember 2004 and conswsts of 18 plots in Mulsammudiyah, Jizan with a total asea of 10,803 60 square
meters purchosed from Tanmiyat Commercial Investment Company

The company sold the ivestment lands described sbove hased on the decision of the Board of

Parectors in its fifth session on 22 May 2021, which is 18 plots in the Muhammadiyah investmen

scheme m Jizan city for an amount of 10,500,000 Saudi fyals

1.

Balance at | Jamuary 1, 255690 1,255,699
Bakince ot 31 December == 1,155,600 1,255,099
Evaluation sdjustment

Bilance w 1 January (581,873 (6,235
Unrealizable gain during the vear 50,615 54,360
Balance at 31 December ; (531,258) (581.673)
Met book value o 31 December 724,441 073 826

This account represent the mvested shares in National Petrochermical Company ( Yansab) of 10,545 share
by (0.001875%) as a1 31 December 2021, The <hare marke! value was 68,70 SE/Share as at 31 December

2L
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Rivals)

11. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

021 2020
Account receivable 28,380,106 30,142,395
Provision for expected credit losses (11-1) 5,8 305K (9,411,600
18.910,797 20,630,795
11-1 Movements in the provision for expected credif losses were as Tollows:
2021 s 2o
Balance ot 1 January a1 1,600 k257442
Provision for the year 269,524 1,206,174
Wrinten of T during the year (211,820} (52,006}
Balance at 31 December 9,464 309 9,411,600
11, INVENTORY, NET
2021 2020
Rerw material (3,405, 665 0,06 1601
Finished goods 5.358,0:h2 11,322,473
Work in process 63,102 .
Spare parts _ 3A53 I 3,588,348
Deduct: 15,280,085 24,942,422
Provision for slow moving items (12-1) (29 164) (3,087, 154)
Impairment provigion Lo (606,477)
15,150,921 11,248,791
12-1 Movements in the provision far slow moving items were ns follows:
L L. S
Balunce at 1 January 3,087,154 1,791,245
Provision for the year . | 426484
Dunnge duning the year (3057990} (1 30,575)
Bulance at 31 December 9, 164 1087154
13, FREPAYME! ] ] EIVABL
2021 1]
Advance to suppliers 4,767,544 5.185,756
Employves receivables [ LR 1,583, TD5
Prepaid expenses 295028 137,504
Refundable deposit 76.313 76,313
Accrued revenue 33,361 h5, Mk
614,232 T8, 1k
Deduct: Provision for expected crodit losses (911.047)  {1,029.207)
5,703,185 6,019,977
13-1 Movements in the Provision for expected credil losses were as Tollows:
2021 pL ]
Hulance w 1 January 1,029.207 o9 322
Provision for the year a |19 885
Written off during the year (11B, 160 B .
Balance at 31 December 011,047 1,820,207
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2071

(Saudi Riyals)

14. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

14-1 Balances from Related parties:

The related poarties are represented in the dealings with the sister COmpRny, non-executive members of
the board of dircetors, managing director and senior nuigement employees of the company, wiiere
the employees of the higher management are the persons who exercise authority and responsibility in
planning, managimg and monitoring the company's sctivitis, dircctly or mdirectly, including the

MMAnAECrs

Duiring the normal course of its eperations, the Company had the following significant transactions
with related parties during the vesr ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, The prices and terms of these
IransAChons are in accordance with the terms of dealing with related partics. Related purties inchade the

folliwing:

Same of the Company - Iype of relation _un Iozo

Junnat Agricultural Investment Compaiy Sister company - -

Eelmed party 1o 5

Premamn Mean Company hosrd member 110,730 -

Rakhisa Agricoltural Investment and

development Company BISter company _ 1L2RD.8T6 135,576
1,391, 36 T25.57h

14-2 Tramsuctions of Reluted parties:

Name of the Company _Nature of relation 021 020

Jannat Agricultural Investment Company Fitncing - 55.49%

Hakhaa Agricultural Investrment and

development Company Financing 555,000 125,576

Premium Meat Company Snles 756,819 -

Premaum Meat Company Purchases fdis, 10 -

The tollowing details of remuneration and compensation paid to non-executive board members and

ST management personnel:
Nov-executive hosrd membors and senior

_management personnel _ 14 | oz
Salaries and compensaton 2205313 2 M 152
Allowances G670 08K B4, 145
Anmanl incentives 47475 __B3ln44

1923176 3051811




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEYVELOPFMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stk Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Sawdi Rivals)

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R 2020
Cash in hand d, (M0 49.211
Cash a1 banks 9326320 2342660
9,341,328 2391880
16. § 10 !

In sceordance with the Saudi Arpbian Companies Regulations and the Company's statue of, 10% of the
annual net income is required 1o be transferred to a statwory reserve until this reserve cquals 306G of
the capital, This reserve is not available for distribution 1o shareholders

17. LON M GOV N

The company obtained u long-term loan from the Saudh Industrial Development Fund on 09/05 201
in arder to finance the establishment and expansion of [tozen vegetables and pelatues production plant,
the total of the approved facilitate loan SR 34,000,004, The loan is repayuble in a period of six-vears
and the semi-annual instaliments stan from August 1, 20015, During 2016, the loan was rescheduled,
with the first installment due after the rescheduling on /12019, This amount was paud in SAR
LUDML00 during 2015, SAR 1,500,000 in 2016, wnd 300,000 Sandi rivals during 2018, bringing the
total value of the loan as of December 31, 2020 the amount of SR 28,000,000, Dusring 20019, the loan
was rescheduled, with the first installment due after the rescheduling on 1/12:2020, and has not been
repaid. During the year 2021 this amount was paid in SR 2,500,000, The loan is secured by mortgaging
the entire food plant to fully produce the meat and the fowdd plant o completely freeze the vegetishles
in favor of the fiund as collmeral for the foan, The boun agroement contains pledges thay i lude, among
ather things, to reduce fture capital expenditures to maintsin cermin financial ratios,

The long term bown movement represents as fol low:

2821 2o
Balance ot | Jansary ZE,006, 000 2ZE.000,000
Paid during the year (2,500,000 B
Total long-term government loan 25,500,000 2B, 000,000
Current portson of long term government loan (195000000 (1 2,000,400y
Non-current portion of long term government loan i, (MO, 00 16000000

I7-1 Finance charges
Finance charges a3 a result of the sovernment loan tor the year ended December 31 202 | amounied )
420,000 SAR (2020 630 000 SAR)

18, EM A 1 ’
18-1 General description

The Company has employee bencfit liabilities represented by end of service benefits and payments due
upen leaving the service under the Saudi Labor Low,

K1}



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTHY AND DEVE] AOFMENT COMPANY
(A Soucki Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fcomFirnsed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBE R A1, 2021

ASaudi Riyaks)

18-2 Muvements on provision of emplovees” defined benefits Habilities

021 0
Bakunce at | henuory ¥.758,013 1,257,245
Current scrvice cost 629,243 6497, 760
Interest cost 224 513 195518
New Employees 178446 -
Benefit pard (L A99,112) (448.827)
Actuarial loss on end of service Al 3aR03; 1056317
Bulance sl 31 December 7,036, () KT58,011
18-3 Significant actuarial LT

021 2020
Sulares growth rale 5% 4.50%
Discount rale LS 24P
18-4 Muovement in present value of employees' defined benefits Babilities

. o
Current service cost 025,243 BYT7, 760
listerest cost on benefit obligation = MR 195,518
Ciest charged 1o stutement af prafit or biss H54.056 —~_ B3 278
Expernence sdivsiments {1,384 803 1,056,317
Cost incloded In Other Comprehensive Income {1.394,803) 1LUs6,317
Total benefit expense [540,747) 1,949,595
19, ACC

2021 ww
Accrued expenses salaries and vacation 2,215,746 1358, K6
Oversubscribed payable 3258720 1,258,720
Avcrued linunee clarges - 30k, D
Advance payment from customers 492,057 355,712
Other acered expenses _ 1.DE9 4Ry 1.5B3,7T1

7.076. 006 i, 186,354

i 5 ] v NE A

021 2020
Halance at | January TRa.627 2 176,375
Additionss dunng the vear 1,563,587 13,134 547
Pudd - Adjustments during the yenr — —(14,526.20%)
Halance of 31 December T30 344 TR4.627
Sales retyrns
Bulance at | Janunry EIa (1T BT, 806
Additions during the year 1,634,413 |92 101
Paid - Adjustrvents during the year (1,953.183) (2,000,028
Halence al 31 December _5R1.29 00T
Tuotal 1,320,678 1.6R4, Tike

il



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joind Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

FUR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2021

(Suudi Riyats)

1. ACCRUED N

Accrued dividend distribution balance which ippeirs in the accompanying statement of Mnancial

position represents the unpaid halance for ameunts decided in the common

| aszembly meeting,

and divadend distribution for the previous years which are not received ¥ the sharchelders up 10

December 31, 202).

22. ESTIMATED ZAKAT PROVISION

(i) Status of pssessments

The Company has filed zakat returns with the GAZT for all years up to 31 December 2020 and

obtained the temparary Zakat Certificate for the vear ended 31 December
ehtamed a final Zakat certificate valid up to 30 Apnil 3022,

2020, The company

The General Authority for Zakat and Income has issued mitial assessmients for the vears 2008 10
2011, and based on these stipulations, the company objected 1o it and received a stipulation which
resulied in zakat differences of SAR 4.021.425. Zakat differences have been extablished within the

estimated Zukat provision for the 2013,

Dhuring the year 2020, the General Authority for Zakat and Income issued initial assessments for the
years from 2014 to 2008, wyd based on these issessments, the company objected 1o them, and the
maodified zukat sssessment was received, which resulied in zakat differences of SAR 35820290, angd
the company objected to the amended sakal assessment ond o modified sakat ASSEHEIen was
received il i value of SAR 2,728,046, and (he compuy objected 1o it und awaited a respsiise from
the Gereral Authority for Zakat and Income, and the enkat differences were bouked in the rakai

estimae for the yvear 2020,

The General Authority for Zakat and Income issued final nssessments for the years from 20146 1y

2020 und hased on these assessments, the company ohjected to them
ib) Provision movement

2021 in
Balance at | January 6,302 274 4,046 301
Provision for current vear 1.502.571 703,951
Aakat duning the year for previous yiears 483478 27285946
Zukat paid during the (3,563 330} (1 176,.924)
Balance at 31 December 4,714,993 6,392,274

(e] Lukat base

The provision for zaknt charge is hised on the following:

2021 w2
Sharcholders” equity - as per GAZT 77,170,350 77,170,350
Reginning provissons and other adjustimenty R6.210,407 12,201,759
Hook value of long 1erm assets - is per GAZLT (5. 629, 802) {935,540.216)
Adiusted losses (12,814,814} 1808, 126)
Other dedugis (4, 305101 ) (32,397 BR0)
Diflerence duc dade conversion from Ciregorian o Hijn I, THT B0K .
Adyusted net profit for the vear 773,788 10432 058
Lakal hase B, 103,823 J1058 842
Lukat calcubated 1.502.571 TU3 U8

= Lakat is caleulsted on the basis of the wdusted ner profit or the Zukat base, whichever 15 greater,

- Adjusted net profit for the yoear
The adjusted net profit for the vear reconcilintion is as follows:

2021 2020
Net boss for the year (8,044 538) (5,856,191
Addpustments —Ni s 19289, 146
Adjusted net profit for the year 773,785 10,432,955




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

{(Saudi Riyals)
23. SALES, Net
—_ im W0
Sales of pastry factory 33,050,778 41,837 8908
Sales of vegeiables factory 27.642 500 33,794,593
Sales of food and meet factory [0,E85,005 19,946,414
Sales of Breakfast cercals factory 1,387,328 32351719
Tutal TX165.621 8,814,701
Hales discoum (6,503.587) (13,134.54T)
Sales returis _ (1.634.433) (1,902,301
64,967,601 B3, 777.853
24. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
nl 2020
Emplovecs’ salorics & benefits A5 Ry S.865, 104
Fees and subscription T15,183 HE0 8K
Right of used assets depreciations 60,686 45,173
Insurance 3914093 38R2AY
Repair and mointenance Hl.434 229,224
Depreciations 108,071 224435
Amortization of intangible nssets 173,182 181,912
Allowances for presence in board
ol director meeting | B4 (W) [RERII
Hospatality and cleaning T2.630 LERAR
Ronuses 218,175 Ad. 550
Advertisemint 36,800 1,837
Bank commission 11,59 54,276
Stationery and printing 137.463 41,588
Telephone and postage 1E 353 RNl
Electricity, water and oils 25,050 23,304
Rents 11,120 3.971
Others | (93,082 4K7 636
10370117 9,145,073
25. SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
2 . mx
Employees’ saluries and benefits 5 875,IM1 6, 7228358
Hents B04.413 1,646,153
Transport and shipment | 224,003 1, 3T0.506
Iepreciation 674,621 1, 2B4.003
Electnicity, water and oils AikAL2 1,198 268
Subscripiion 095,503 1 100,633
Repair and maintenance 363,649 613,431
l'emporary labor GED 662 246,165
[nsurance 533,247 SO0 ADK
L paviimission &S, 756 461 A4
Damage SR5.082 421,746
Advernsement 181.E14 305 000
Sales promotion 10hs, 239 176,714
Telephone and postape 115,128 B, 103
Stationery and printing 19,353 H 86U
Oithers 141,484 261,216

13,030,629 16,763,934




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Juint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST, ATEMENTS |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER Al, 202)

ASandi Riyals)

6. OTHER REVENLUE

— 0 20 -
Rental meome 1,201,750 S04 T
Crnin on sales of property, plant ud equipment K47.655 192,145
Liain on sales of scrap HOd R32 107,291
Other revenise SBASGd 189,099
3,528,801 1,442,515

27, LOSS PER SHARE
Loss per share is caleulated from the net loss ol major operations by dividing the net loss of Tk jor
operations for the year by the welghied average number of shures during the year, Loss per share is
calculated from the net loss for ihe year by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average
niimber of shares during the yeur,

Diluied loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 and ending 31 December 2020 was
calculated by dividing the net loss from main aperations and net loss for the vear by the wirijrhied
average numnber of shares outstanding during the vear adjusted for the potentsal reduction in ordinury
shares. As fhere is no contingent lishility for equity instruments. ihe dilutedd loss per share are no
differeni from basic loss per share.

The weighted average number of shares for the two years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020was reached hy taking the effeet of the capital deorease from the begitining of the nearest offiered
perickd (January |, 2019y T comply with the requirements of JAS 33,

The following table reflects the foss and share data wsed i the basic and diluted [oss per shire
COHPUEE fans:

e —
Net boss for the year (105930 587) (12.379,0KK)
Luss per shure - basic and diluted S—— L (1.60)
Net loss from the main operation i (11,918,032} {6.494,577)
Loss per share - basic wod diluted L g4 @ (B4
Welghted average number of shares
outstanding for basic & diluted EPs T.717,035 7,717,035

26. EINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Filr value measarement

Fair value represents the mmaoumn may be collected from the assel sabe ar g bewsst to convert commitment

between knowledgeable parties on the sume terms and dealing with others and depends on the fujr vitlue

teasurement of the following conditions:

I In the principal market for the assel or hakality, or

2. The most advantageous market for the asset or hability in the ahsence of o prancipal market the
company should be able to handle through the maost advantageous morker.

34



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NUTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinmed )

FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 11, 202

(Suudi Riyals)

28, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

When measuring the fair value of an assel or a lability, the Company uses market observable data as

tar a5 possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fiir value hierarchy based on the

mpats wsed in the valuation technigues as fiollows:

- Level I: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities,

- Level X inputs other thin queted prices included in Level 1 that are observable fir the asset or
lability, cither directly or indirectly,

- Leved 3: inposs for the asset or linkility that are not hased on observable market duta {unohseryahle
mputs), IF the inputs used to measure the fair valie of o financial psset at fuir value measures,

T'he Company recognizes ransfers between levels of the Fabr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has sccurmed
Muanagement believes that its estimates and judgments are reasonable and adeguime.

Phe fair valoes of financial assets snd liabilities are not signi ficantly different from their carrving vilues
i the financial statements as of December 31, 2021.

Fuir valoe levels

Detuils of financiol instrumsents curried ot fiir value are s below:

M December 2021 Amount Levell Level 2 ~ Level 3
Investments determined by fair

vlie through other comprehensive

iICasTe 724,441 724 441 - -

X1 December 2020

mvestments determined by Fair
value through other comprehensive
mcLme h73,820 [RER - -

Irunsfers between Levels | & 2
Ihere have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the reporting periods

20 FINANCIAL
The company has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial nstruments,
- Uredhit risk.
« Liquidity risk.
= Muarket rigk.
= Capilal mamagement.
This note presents informstion about the company's exposire 1o cach of the above risks, the company's

vbjectives, policies and processes for measuring ansd miEnaing risk, and the company's managemen of
capital.

Risk manngement framework

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and eversight of company's risk
management framework.

The company’s risk management policics are established 1o identify and analyses the risks faced b the
Lampany, to set appropriate risk fimits and controls, and to monitor risks and adberence 1o limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewsd regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the company's activitics. The company, through its training snd monagement standards and
provedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all emplinvees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Uompany's Audit Commitice monitors the management's perfofmance in monitoring compliance
with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the nsk
management framework m relation o the nsks facing the Company.

Financial instruments included i the ststement of financial position melude maanly cash and cash
equivalents. receivables, other assets. investments, creditors, sccrued liabilitics, loans and other non-
current liabilities.

]



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (et innsed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

9., AN sh M i NT (continued)

Credit risk

Credit nisk represents the risk thay the Company will incur o financial loss us 3 resull of a failure of the
cuslumer or counterparty o meet a financial instrument with its contractual ohligations. These risks

arwse mainly from its bank balances, trade and other receivables.

The Company's exposure 1o credit risk i maiinly affecied by the specificity of each customer. The
demographic nuure of the € ‘ompany's customers, mcluding the default risk of the activity and the

cotiniry in which the customer operates, has a kywer impact on credit risk

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable (o meet jis financud labilitics as they fall due
to its financial Babilities that are settled through the provision of cash or ather financial assety. The
Compuny's liguidity management is to ensure, to the extent possible, that the Company always
ranting suffickent liquidity 1o meet its obligitions when it becomes payable under normal ind stress ful
circumstances without incurring unacceptable losses or risks that may affect the Compuny's repuiation,

The Company envures thit it bas suffichent cash w cover expected operating expenses including
toverige of financial lahilities bt withoys any polentinl fmpact on diffieult and unpredictable
vonditions such as notural disasiers, In additson, the Company maintains a credit source from its hanks

o meet any sudden cash necds,

The contractsal maturities of nun-derivative financial liabilitics are as Folbows:

Less than o Mere than Mo fixed

Nem-derivative financial Habilities year yesr maturity Total
3 I 1

Ciovernment loan 1%, 5000, 000 i, 1MEH - 25,5040, 00}
Trade paynbles . - 33,539,153 33,539,153
Loan gusrantee provision - related 1. 150,245 4,050,345 . 7,200,550

iy

Eunlul obligations 477232 2128422 = 2605 654
Oversubseribed payubie - - 3,158,720 1158700
Accrued dividend distribution . - 1193417 1,193,417
Acerued expenses and other labilities 1581540 = 2,235,746 117,246
Estimated Zakat provision 4,714,993 - - 4,714,993
Sales provisions 1, 320678 - - 1,320,674

Employees’ defined benefits labilities

30,744,684 12,178,767

LOIG000 7,036,000
47,263,036 o0, 146,491

in



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT ¢ ‘OMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Saudi Riyals) =
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liguidity risk {comtinued)
Less than u Mure thun a Mo fwed
-;'«Inl-uwiwliw linancial Habilitics year year miaturity Total
11 €r

Government o 12, 0000, (K I, LM 00N = 1K, 00,000
Trade payubles - - 34,726,087 34,726,057
Loan guarantee provigion - related

party 2,250, 183 4,950,407 7,200,590
Rentol oblipstions 419,348 2416127 - 2835475
Crversubscribed payable - - 1,258,720 3,288,720
Acerued dividend distribution - . 1,194,822 1,194,822
Accrued expenses and other Habilities 2,554,508 i 273,131 4,927 630
Estimated Zakat provision 382 274 - " 6,392,274
Sales provisions 1684, Tn - - 1,684,706
Employess” defined hencfiis liabilitics — i A : B.758,013 B, 758,013

25300009 23366514 S0310,743 TH. 978,196

Market risk

Murket rick is the sk arising from changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rtes, murahaha
rates and equity prices that affect the Compuny's profits or the value of the Company's financial

INFrumeants,

The ubjective of market risk management is 1o control the extent to which the ‘ompuny is exposed 1o

market risk within acceptable lmits in addition to MK ImiLng returns.
Currency risk

It b5 the risk that the value of § financial nstrument will fluctuate due 1o changes in forelzn exchinge
rates, Management monitors luctuntions in foreign cumency exchange rates, and believes that the
Company is noi exposed to significant currency risk since the Company did sot underioke gigni ficant
transaetions in curvencies other than Saudi Riyal and US Dollars, The Saudi Rival ig pegued to the LS
Dullisr, accordingly, bulances and transactions in 1S Dallars are net considered 1o represent significant

currency risk.
Capital Munagement

The Company's capital management policy is Io maintain o strong capital base to maintain shareholders,
ereditors und market confidence as well as the continued chevelopment of the company’s future sctivities.

The capital consists of ordinary shares, mistandng shires outstanding, retained carnings and non-

confrolling interesis.

The management monitors the neturn on equity, which is determmed by dividing net operating profit

on sharcholders' equaty

The Company sim o mainain the halance between the highest return possible in case of barrowing as

high s possible und the preference and = Fety of a strong capital centre,

The Company did not kave any change in capitul management during the vear and the Company is not

subject b any external capital requirements.

3. ADJUSTED CAPI TAL RATID

2021 2020
Linbalines at the end of the veur T0.%71.724 h6, 853, T4
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (9330L32K) (2,391 RBO)
Net liabilitics 61,641,396 64,461, R64
Adjusted capital LA, TTT 62,144,946
116.61% 103.40%
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t=nx

31 SEGMEN

The Company's operations are princ

EVELOPMENT COMPANY

pally comprised of four operating segmcnt (manufacturing,

praducing and marketing froeen potatocs shides, manufacturing, procucing and marketing all kind of

maciron, manafaciuring, producing and
marketing breakfast beans). Following is

murketing meat products and manifacturing, producing and
the segments financial statements os of 3 | December 2021:-

Vepetalde Bremk fase Meul prodiscis
Mrnfit nmd Foss §benms Pastu secior aector heams sivior suchor Tual
Sakd (Mt | 22,5924 533 12005 2 .6, 331 1981540 G B0 TR
Coal of Sales (120265000 | (24950880 | (427707 (1413137 153,474 ENT)
Lirwss Margin LT 627 T | (2240810 (3 AT 636} 1A% 714
Mulimidnistrasive ard (Genem| CAPCnECs {2487 450 (B30, 74 (B2 A0S (2,218,292 (HEAM11T)
Sellang snid markiting expenses 13, 125,82K) D CELAREG | (1.043.445) {1,780,12%) { D3, 000,61 %)
Imcame | (loss) from the main
iperation ARLER L] (ABSLESH) | §4.113,66%9) {8, 420,653) (110K 032y
Fravisian for expocsd credil hosses (a51) [F25. 790} 121563 [ 51535 (269,524
Impairmens uf property. plan and
i (112,357) (218, 486) R 1 | 1w, 1wy (468, 57H)
Reversad ul NNETERSINY Bpars pasts
pravigiom |82, 7 155 AH8 MG 162, 5k Tal &8k
Finungg charges (LS S (1%, 0% AN (Hu6dd (420, iy
Fiamnie oo {45215 | T H25) (EE 313 136 R {168 HUg)
Uther Income #6444 1.0=80. 901 282 M¥) V5150 3530501
Incame ¢ {Ines) for the period before
Zakui & 1%5,39] (269, THIS | (3076 500 7,793,554 [H.%44,555)
“akat {476, 359) (O26,294) | (15H.8H) {413.5K1) (1,986,049
bienig [ flosa) For the yeur 4,719,003 [AIRETT) | 4035478 (0,217,430 {10 9305HT)

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

I'he management believes that there are M sighi

may affect the Anancial position of the company

hicant subscquent events since the end of the vear 1

Eh
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(Saudi Rivalk)

3. SIGNIGICANT EVENTS

A In response to the spread of the Covid-19 vins arvund the world and the resulting disruption of
sociul and econvmic activities in those mairkets, the company's mianagement hus prosctively
assessed is impact on its operations and has taken a series of preventive mensires, ncluding
torming teams and ongoing erisis Mmanagement processes, 1o ensure the health and safety of its
emplovees, And its customers, consumers and sociely as a wider range us well as ensuring the
vontinuily of supplying its products in all its markets, Whereas, the food industry in general has
been cxempt from the various hans and restrictions fmposed by the various regulatory
authorities including the exemption from curfew hawirs,

H. Bosed on these faciors, the company s management belicves that the Covid-19 epidemic did not
hive o significant mpact on the company's financial stitement results that were reparted for the
vear ended December 31, 202

Lo Due w persistence of the Covid - 19 disease, the company fs maonitoning the situation closely,
especially in the next few manths and the Comipany expests the situstion to be gradually
improved and hopes the outhreak of Covid-19 will end this year.

[ On May 22, 2021 the company s hoard of directors igaged o recommendation 1o increwse (he
company’s capital through a issuing an ordinary shares of 154,340,700 Saudi Rivals. The
Company s manegenmsent sppointed an issucr. o legal ndvisor and financinl ndyisor W mRinge
the increase process. A request to increase the cupitul has been submitted 1o the Capital Morket
Authority und the company is stil) iwaiting the approval of the Capital Market Authority.

3. Comparative numbers

The comparstive figures for the previous period have been modified 10 carrespond with the figures of
the current period.

35, APFROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Hoard of Directors on 14 Shaban 1443H {17 March
2022).
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